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Business Overview

2018/19 was another year marked by solid financial performance of
the University amidst increasing challenges in the higher education
sector. The year also witnessed steady progress on a suite of
projects and initiatives launched over the past couple of years
aimed at securing a sustainable future for the University.

The University has developed a focused investment plan for
pursuing academic excellence, consistent with our mission to use
innovative teaching and education technology. The success in the
implementation of our financial management priorities has reaped
promising results in 2018/19. The University is able to generate
an operating income of HK$1,230.3 million for the year, with a
record high enrolment of full-time students. This result has put the
University in a good position to make further investment in teaching,
learning, research and capital works to address the upcoming
challenges, especially the increasingly complex and changing
operating environment in the sector.
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Some Positive Outcomes

Encouraging outcomes from student enrolment from the full-time
mode, together with the effective cost rationalization measures
brought about a healthy Group operating surplus of HK$261.6
million for the year. We are also embracing opportunities to reverse
the trend of the rising staff cost which had been increasing at a
pace faster than revenue growth. The new Pay and Reward System
implemented in the year has helped not only to bring staff cost to
a manageable level but also offer incentives for high performers
and hence encouraging teaching innovation, work efficiency and
personal development.

The strategy to launch campaigns in different student sectors has
seen increase in non-local and top-up students. The expanding
student enrolment sources has helped reduce the University
reliance on local school leavers, and hence establish a more
sustainable financial base to pursue our academic agenda.

Securing stable income from investments is another important but
challenging area to maintain a steady income flow for the University.
The University's investment objectives and strategy has been
reviewed constantly and opportunity looked for to enhance return
through further diversification of our portfolio holdings. Despite the
highly volatile investment market condition, the University is able to
generate an overall positive investment return for the year.
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Income and Expenditure

The OUHK (Group) has recorded fee income for the year of
HK$1,185.5 million, an increase of 17.1% from HK$1,012.1 million
of the previous year. The healthy and sustainable fiscal position
provided us with much needed resources to tackle challenges and
embark on investment in new professional programmes, including
a few which might not be financially viable but are meeting evolving
needs of the community.

BEYA vs BEAY (EEREREER)
Tuition Fee Income vs Student Headcount (DL & F2F Mode)
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Income and Expenditure (continued)

For the year under review, the Group spent a total of HK$968.8 million
on operating activities, compared with HK$922.8 million in 2017/18.
The underlying staff costs have increased by HK$31 million or 4.4%
in the year. The ratio of staff cost to tuition fee income has dropped
to 61%, due to the combined effects of higher fee income and
containment of staff cost growth after the implementation of the new

performance-based Pay and Reward System.
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Investment

The global financial market in 2018/19 was volatile, with less
satisfactory performance in conventional asset classes such as
equities and bonds. During the year, a decision was taken to adjust
the University’s investment portfolio by adding a new category
of investments in products which offer relatively better and more
stable coupon rate to achieve a return profile of low volatility and
low correlation to traditional asset classes. For the financial year
2018/19, the University’s investment holdings generated a gain of
HK$56.8 million.

Donations and Government Grants

A total of HK$34.8 million matching grants was awarded by
the Government under the Seventh Matching Grant Scheme
against a total of HK$76.1 million matched donations. Another
HK$14.3 million donations were made by various philanthropists,
corporations, charitable foundations and friends for scholarships,
bursaries and student activities.

Results of the Year

This is another one that | am proud to report the University’s
financial results as the Council Treasurer of the Open University
of Hong Kong. The Group has recorded a strong financial
performance with an operating surplus of HK$261.6 million and an
overall surplus (after including the results of other activities, interest
and investment gain) of HK$331.7 million. | wish to acknowledge
the University executive and staff for their unwavering commitment
to the success of the University and the achievement of its financial
goals. A healthy and sustainable fiscal position was delivered
with clear focus on academic priorities. The University continued
to maintain a strong balance sheet with total funds and reserves
exceeding HK$3.2 billion, providing the University with greater
financial capability and flexibility in making significant long term
investments in the coming years.
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Way Forward

The world is moving fast into the new era of automation and data
exchange that people now label it as Industry 4.0. The way how we
learn, teach, do research and implement administrative measures
will be affected by the rapid change in thinking and technological
innovation. In order not to be lagged behind and remain competitive
to provide transformative and lifelong education, the University will
continually reinvent, make improvements and pursue excellence.
Apart from continuing with the prudent and risk based financial
management practices, the University has started to look at new
technologies for achieving further operational efficiency in the use
of resources.

Quality of education is always at the very centre of our work. An
additional amount of HK$150 million will be set aside to expand the
scope and coverage of the quality enhancement measures targeted
at enhancing academic quality through a series of comprehensive
programmes including elevating the University academic status,
improving teaching quality, and providing better support, services
and learning facilities to our students.

2019 marks the 30th anniversary of the University. The University
will leverage on her strengths of innovation, flexibility and relevance
in entering into the next stage and setting her eyes on areas
not only in Hong Kong. Our staff and graduates are already
making contributions to social and economic development of our
neighbouring cities in the Greater Bay Area. The University is now
better positioned to play a bigger role to “Strive to Nurture and
Transform the Future” in the region. Let us work together to bring
the University to new heights and to thrive in the many more years
to come.

Peter KT Wan
Treasurer of The Open University of Hong Kong
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To the Council of The Open University of
Hong Kong

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Open University of
Hong Kong (the “University”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 13 to 81, which comprise:

* the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2019;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of changes in fund balances for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

* the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Treasurer’s
Report and Performance Indicators, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of The Council and
The Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and The Open University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing financial
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 15 of The Open
University of Hong Kong Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o HRIFFTEANIMEERIERMERLRE  » Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
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consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Council.

010 011



B ZBENHRE
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

B E RS M B RR
AENEE ()

BR
£
laray

==
=T

fa]

URNESRABELLESTERNGE
M &SR o IRIBATERNETRE
HERLFHERFHNBAEHNEX
NHEE M - 1M Al e EH Y E R B F
BIRERNELETARE - MRHFIR
RFEERTHEEN  BAELEEZE
A& P IRFEEAE I EAE M B MR
FHABRE - REBRNOKETE -
ARMEEERIFEREER - MW
fEwm e BN AN RS B LTSI E
FHERE - AR - REFBEMIERAIES

HESBETRFERLE -

FHEAR A M SRR BEYIRA N - &
BMAZR  BREEE  UWREEMBR
REBTHERRZZMEIR o

RERENEBREHEBNMHES
EERGR  EENERE  WESHEKS
BMBHRERERER - HMAEERE
FiteTA - EEMMIT - RAIRER

BRAEREAE -

HiEIRS  HfIREREZESBA T
MEFTHE - BRELH - EXFFER
- BRERPIERE TR L BRI E
ERERR -

BERKES A ERFR
HEEEHED

&

B —E-NFEtA=1T—H

2018-2019 ###8 & FINANCIAL REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31st July 2019
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Land use right
Student loan receivables
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Financial investments at amortised cost

CURRENT ASSETS

Stock of course materials

Accounts receivable, other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Student loan receivables

Designated financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Financial investments at amortised cost

Derivative financial assets

Bank deposits with original maturities
over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Fee income receipt in advance
Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and provisions
Deferred income
Current portion of gratuities provision
Current portion of Government loans, secured
Income tax payable

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Gratuities provision
Government loans, secured
Deferred capital fund
Deferred tax liability

TOTAL NET ASSETS

g
Note

© 0 N O

14(a)
14(b)

13
12

15
14(a)
14(b)

16
16

17
18
19
20

19
20
21
22

R-E—hEF RZZ—)\F
=A=1+—H —A=+—H
At 31st March 2019 At 31st March 2018
$’000 $°000
142,318 145,937
1,435,002 1,388,793
3,486 9,721
5,257 5,687
24,939 20,110

- 72,558

102,000 -
1,713,002 1,642,806
2,382 2,286
117,888 91,748
6,470 5,552
1,576,162 1,509,048
- 25,540

41,532 -
90 -
655,390 176,529
781,875 710,572
3,181,789 2,521,275
313,545 278,936
149,028 144,703
252,778 143,994
23,782 21,915
31,050 43,049
1,320 1,677
771,503 634,274
2,410,286 1,887,001
4,123,288 3,529,807
15,934 13,724
452,265 209,274
425,098 410,383
3,570 1,680
896,867 635,061
3,226,421 2,894,746
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RZZ—NF=A=+—H ASAT31ST MARCH 2019
LABTLAEHE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

R-Z—NhEF R-ZE—N\F
=B=+—AH —A=+—H
Mizx At 31st March 2019 At 31st March 2018
Note $°000 $'000
HER REPRESENTED BY
HEEHEGKHE FUNDS AND RESERVES 5 3,226,421 2,894,746

REGN T NFLtA=Z+—AZERGEUBHRE
Approved by the Council on 31st July 2019

FERE Peter KT Wan ®EIL Y S Wong 2 [El{# Santiago K W Chuen

A& Treasurer K& President B #5482 E5 Director of Finance
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2-Z—NF=A=1+—HIFFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019
LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
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PEE
Note

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

OPERATING INCOME
Tuition fee income
Consultancy fee income
Miscellaneous income

Total operating income

OPERATING EXPENDITURE
Academic expenditure
Course materials
Tutors” costs
Direct student costs
Staff costs
General expenses 24

Administrative expenditure
Staff costs
General expenses 24
Depreciation charge

Total operating expenditure
OPERATING RESULT

OTHER ACTIVITIES FUNDED BY
DONATIONS AND GRANTS
Income 25
Expenditure 25

RESULT OF OTHER ACTIVITIES FUNDED BY
DONATIONS AND GRANTS

NET RESULT BEFORE INTEREST AND
INVESTMENT INCOME
Net interest and investment income 29

SURPLUS BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax expense 30
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences 5

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR

2019 2018
$’000 $°000
1,185,453 1,012,056
16,783 12,701
28,093 27,733
1,230,329 1,052,490
(17,623) (13,517)
(43,441) (45,540)
(34,494) (29,634)
(371,028) (351,833)
(8,981) 6,877)
(475,567) (447,401)
(265,701) (256,910)
(160,685) (150,838)
(66,818) (67,647)
(493,204) (475,395)
(968,771) (922,796)
261,558 129,694
109,829 119,723
(90,863) (87,984)
18,966 31,739
280,524 161,433
56,789 150,239
337,313 311,672
(4,276) (3,550)
333,037 308,122
(1,362) 1,311
331,675 309,433
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HIFEFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019
LABTLAEHE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

SHEE : ALLOCATED TO:
EHES Specific funds
— AR N B General and exchange reserves
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2019 2018
$’ 000 $°000
(1,889) 3,404

333,564 306,029
331,675 309,433




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

HE-Z-NF=A=1+—HILFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

R-Z—+4F
WMA—HB 248

FRREER
Hbsra Was
FEEINFRAF]
AT RAR PREE
ZIERER
FNERA W B
Ee 2 EHNR
RIS—N\E=A=1+—HZ#ER
KRB N\FHA—B &%
FA (B8R ) Bk
HipsraEiE
FEBINAT]
SRR MEL
IR R
FRErG (B1R) / Washes

Eez &Nk

AZB—hEF
ZA=t+—BZz#&es

He RiFED 2 BB S

Balance as at 1st April 2017
Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange difference arising from
translation of a foreign subsidiary’s
financial statements
Total comprehensive income for the year
Reallocation of funds
Balance as at 31st March 2018
Balance as at 1st April 2018
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive loss:
Exchange difference arising from
translation of a foreign subsidiary’s

financial statements

Total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year

Reallocation of funds

Balance as at 31st March 2019

Details of movements in funds and reserves are set out in note 5.

—BR

ERiE

SHES General and
Specific exchange 8
funds reserves Total
$'000 $°000 $'000
306,191 2,279,122 2,585,313
3,404 304,718 308,122
- 1,311 1,311
- 1,311 1,311
3,404 306,029 309,433
3 ©) -
309,598 2,585,148 2,894,746
309,598 2,585,148 2,894,746
(1,889) 334,926 333,037
- (1,362) (1,362)
- (1,362) (1,362)
(1,889) 333,564 331,675
2058 (2,058) -
309,767 2,916,654 3,226,421
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EE-NF=A=+—HILFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
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Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Overseas tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received
Investment income received

Fund management and custody fees paid
Purchases of financial investments at amortised cost
Funds placed in designated financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss

Funds withdrawn from designated financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of intangible assets

Sale proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Student loans granted to students
Student loans repaid by students
Increase in bank deposits with original
maturities over three months

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest-free loan repaid to the Government
Interest-free loan received from the Government

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March

B
Note

33

16

2019 2018
$°000 $'000
477,454 371877
(2,179) (1,710)
475275 370,167
18,328 6,508
146,327 51,008
(3,400) (3,400)
(70,080) -
(242,951)  (47,616)
97,959 27,108
(133,994)  (58,716)
: (860)

74 8
(11,414) (11,453
5,636 4,767
(478,861)  (123,884)
(672,376)  (156,440)
(43,700)  (43,700)
313,100 72,500
269,400 28,800
72,299 242527
710,572 467,257
(996) 788
781,875 710,572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NG

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

JLEEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
—REH
BEEARAKRE ([KE]) (FIF

BAMEESER ([Bk])) X
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ARFEETIRESEHERE - #
B REERR - lReAMBKRF - %Ki
REBBNEEIMSER -

AR B N7 I B K B2 2 ) ) 2 A R MR
B [TTRRBHESE] - BURREEH
BFEREBERT RNERMN AR EEZR
X HE-NMAZ/AA=ZFELL-
f—Nh=/—"AEFERK K8
MNBB&EES &S -

—NNEFRA - BEEMTERBB
YR RIBEITNE ZXTE - BUTR
—MWAREFE+ARBEESMIER
MigE BRTERARTFES T
NBITHEMEEMNRE - ERR
—NANtFEA-+—HBBTES
NFAEEZEE (1BF]) BH (1997)

BN —ANEFRA=ZTHAE
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(1989) kBB RFIHEESR (1BF]) &
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=l
R
E—J N

KET N AH) T B E 5|5
WEMT 10 KEREFAN
[£8] -

A
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11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

General information

The Open University of Hong Kong, “the University” (formerly
The Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong, “the Institute”), was
established as a body corporate on 25th May 1989 under The
Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong Ordinance 1989 for the
provision of opportunities for higher education in Hong Kong by
means of open learning and thereby to advance learning and
knowledge, and to enhance economic and social development
in Hong Kong.

Under the Memorandum of Administration Arrangements
which provides the framework for the operational relationship
between the Government and the University, the Government
met the setting up and capital costs of the University by giving
a grant in each financial year up to 1992/1993. Starting from
1993/1994, the University became self-financing.

Upon the third review of the Institute by Hong Kong Council
for Academic Accreditation ( “HKCAA™) in June 1995 and
the successful transfer of accrediting role from HKCAA, the
Government confirmed the Institute’s self-accrediting status to
validate its own degree programmes in October 1996. On 30th
May 1997, the Institute was upgraded to a university following
The Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong (Amendment)
Ordinance 1997 passed by the Legislative Council on 21st
May 1997. The Open Learning Institute of Hong Kong
Ordinance 1989 and The Open Learning Institute of Hong
Kong (Amendment) Ordinance 1997 had been repealed and
superseded by The Open University of Hong Kong Ordinance.

The principal activities of the University’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The University
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group” .

The address of its registered office is 30 Good Shepherd
Street, Homantin, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of HK dollars ($'000), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TLAERE

2.1

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
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2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
Peen consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS™)
and interpretations (collectively HKFRS) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of designated financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

The following amendments to standards have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on 1st April
2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 15 and
HKFRS 15 (Amendment)
("HKFRS15™)

Revenue from contracts
with customers

Apart from the above, no other amendments that are mandatory
for the financial year commencing on 1st April 2018 are relevant
and applicable to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LABTT4EE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

2. TEETHREE (&)
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2.1

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Change in accounting policies

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments” and
HKFRS 15°Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ from 1st
April 2018, which resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. In accordance with the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, comparative figures have not been

restated.

(@) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

On the date of initial application, 1st April 2018, the financial
instruments of the Group were reclassified as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

78 Measurement category BRTE{E Carrying amount
REBGET REBIGRE REBGE REBMBRE
ZRII5E 39 5% ZERIIZE 9 5% ZERIIZE 39 5% R 9 5%
Original (HKAS 39) New (HKFRS 9) Original (HKAS 39)) New (HKFRS 9)
$°000 $°000
ERBIEE
Non-current financial assets
EEEER R SRR fice 3D %N 20,110 20,110
Student loan receivables Amortised cost Amortised cost
HEEIHPOREE REHR R ER 72,558 E A
Held-to-maturity financial assets Amortised cost Not applicable Not Applicable
RE KA € RIRE TER REER R TNE A 72,558
Financial investments at amortised cost Not applicable Amortised cost Not Applicable
mENEE
Current financial assets
FEMRRTR B RN S i & %8 5 DN REEHPR 68,443 68,443
Accounts receivable, other receivables and deposits Amortised cost Amortised cost
EWEEER fice 3 [D%N fice 3D 5,552 5,552
Student loan receivables Amortised cost Amortised cost
BBERRRRMATEER N ESREE miEERRRE miEERRRE 1,509,048 1,509,048
Designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss NEBEEEE NEBEEEE
Fair value through Fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") | profit or loss (“FVPL")
HEZIPerREE RN TER 25,540 TNE A
Held-to-maturity financial assets Amortised cost Not applicable Not Applicable
RN AN S RIRE TiE A REEEPOR TE A 25,540
Financial investments at amortised cost Not applicable Amortised cost Not applicable
REIEA R BB =(E B Z SRITIFK FREEHR AR FREEHR AR 176,529 176,529
Bank deposits with original maturities over three months Amortised cost Amortised cost
RekReEEY FREHR AR FREHR AR 710,572 710,572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

2. TEESHERBE (F) 2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1 JWHIEHE (1) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
SEBRNES) (F) Change in accounting policies (continued)

() BEMBHMELAE R EMTAE)

BRI SHEEAE O RMLEREERS
BEENSE I ERKILER - 1342
B EAITRERS -

BEWHRELENE O RASRMEESIA—
B BENGENE  MRREREE X
BRARER SRR - BEMBRE LR
FIFHSRMEED R=ABR - LB HK
R EBEMGARERRAFERE IR
MmBERRRRAFERCIIR - ZED
BERREAEHEAS R [ERTA:
ERNLETE ] MR - 2RI AE R kAR
R BEBERRUATEEZCHNERE
ENRFAERMEREE -

PRSP EAKARINERMEEZESRRD
D RRRREEN AT IRIE - ARBERRAS
HAZSEERZIHA  WEBROEZ2RE
mo MRERERIABSATZMEREAR
BZEE -

BRTHHEEIMeMEEEN ORI B
BYBREERE O FUEEHEMERHEE
MO BRETEYEEMPZE o RARHEHK
AR ER MM RFIG T A BB B
EERNE 9 5T LAB AR AT R AV IGRLTF o

BRI HmEERNE 9 52 FRMEE A
[FEHMEERE] BEARREEG LS
9RIATN [BELBRE] E - ILWEHNX
AP BR & B A EDBRAFRERR -

AEBEREBUBHRELERE o 2B
BRI EHRERS N BB ERE
[EfF B BREFIA ETRREREL -

2018-2019 ###8 & FINANCIAL REPORT

(@) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, and
introduces a new impairment model for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new classification and measurement approach
for financial assets that reflects the business model in which assets
are managed and their cash flow characteristics. HKFRS 9 contains
three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured
at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and
fair value through profit or loss ( “FVPL"). The standard eliminates
the existing HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement categories of loans and receivables, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and held-to-maturity financial assets.

Corporate bonds that would have previously been classified as held-
to-maturity financial assets are now classified as financial investments
at amortised cost. The Group intends to hold the assets to maturity to
collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist solely of
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Apart from the reclassification of held-to-maturity financial assets,
there were no other impact on the classification and measurement of
the Group's financial assets because loans and receivables financial
assets currently measured at amortised cost meet the conditions for
classification at amortised cost under HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss " impairment model in HKAS 39 with
a forward-looking “expected credit loss” model. The new impairment
model applies to financial assets classified at amortised cost.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for the accounts receivable and student loan receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars
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2.1

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

Change in accounting policies (continued)

(@) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

For other receivables, deposits and financial investments, the
Group applies the general approach, which requires either 12
months expected loss allowance or lifetime expected loss allowance
depending on whether there has been a significant increase in credit

VIIRHERBEHMEIWER - e eSS risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of

H{=EmRE AIEIEIN - B2 EFEE=EE other receivables, deposits and financial investments have occurred

EEtERE - since initial recognition, then expected credit losses are measured as
lifetime expected loss allowance.

BEFTHRERE  EREATHSE To estimate the required impairment provision, management assesses

EERNBAENGRE - WEBERKIEH
TEHTRE - S REERAENEEER
BATSHRAPHRTERTRNEATE -

(o) BRMBEMEERIE 15 KR EEMBR
SEAES T (EFIA) [REEFPA
#Z WA
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SRRV 159 - HBR T BB EHENE
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A BEXRSZER  BXZERIEERE
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DIRRIE A B E sk RIS B Hl 2 8815
ERFRHEREA -

WARE e R G SR = &8 PR
R o EmRBOIEHIRE —BRERAEE
X—BEER - BURNA DNFRRAE EE
RARAHHDERIRE -

FERME B BMELNE 15 K RBBHB
WEERNE 15 F(EFTA) HAEEZRE Y
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historical collection rates of these financial assets and considers
adjustments for future expectations. There was no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements from the application of the
expected credit loss model on these financial assets.

(b) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The accounting policies were changed to comply with HKFRS 15,
which replaces HKAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts” (“HKAS 117)
and HKAS 18 ‘Revenue’ (“HKAS 18") which cover contracts for
goods and services and the related interpretations that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of revenue and costs.

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
when to recognise revenue and how much revenue to be recognised
through a 5-step approach: identify the contract(s) with customer;
identify separate performance obligations in the contract; determine
the transaction price; allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and recognise revenue when a performance obligation is
satisfied.

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of
the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, the control of the
goods or services may be transferred over time or at a point in time.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not result in any significant impact to

the consolidated financial statements.
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LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

2. FESFTBERBIE (&) 2. Summary of significant accounting
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2.1

policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1st April 2019 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to have
a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, except the following set out below:

RT5IBER Effective for accounting
a2 4ER BAPKE-d New Standards periods beginning
GEFEER on or after
BEEVBHmE HE —E-hEF HKFRS 16 Leases 1st January 2019
YR 16 557 —HA—H
BAEMGERE  IREEREEE 5 HKFRS10and  Sale or Contribution of To be determined
ZERIIZE 10 5% NalEERE HKAS 28 Assets between an
REAGTEA HESOTAEE (Amendment) Investor and its Associate

2 28 SREIERT

REBE BN ERHEEM B EERERA L
AR - AEBBEGELHERNNZ
FE - R TIFEMBEHREERSE 16 57
VREIN - TR B R R BE AR R GE LR AR A
HAREENTBHORA R B RRNTE -

BB BHEERE 16 R EBEGTE
A 17 R HERE - ARNEEHER
BEMEZRISEME  EHSEEE
FHREFREAZHERANEERBERAR
R REHMETER - BE (HEEEZE
i) ExflszemBER THER
fR-#eEERANERREEEE - HE
AZEBHEEBTEBEERES - ZER|
HEBFEAEERLLEHEL SRR
AEBLETHRBUYEREERZ &K
A o WRIRESAHE - EREBRE 285
RIBZEE  KREBEFAR_T-NF=
A=+—B®RA-TOANTEETHNHA
EEEZERAER—THAENTEETLH
N zeMasE -
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or Joint Venture

The Group will apply these new standards in the year of initial
application. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the adoption
of the new standards and is not yet in a position to state whether they
would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position, except for HKFRS 16 Leases as set out below.

HKFRS 16, 'Leases replaces HKAS 17 ‘Leases’ and related
interpretations. It will result in lessees bringing almost all their leases
onto the balance sheet as the distinction between operating leases
and finance leases is removed. The model requires a lessee to
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for leases
with a term of less than 12 months or with low-value. The accounting
for lessors will not change significantly. HKFRS 16 will affect primarily
the accounting for the Group’s operating leases. The Group is in
the final stage of its implementation projects. Based on the current
assessment, it is estimated that the change in accounting for the
Group’s operating leases will result in the recognition of right-of-use
assets of HK$14.8 million and lease liabilities of HK$14.8 million as at
31st March 2019.
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LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

2. FESTHBEHBE (&) 2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.2 F42F 2.2 Subsidiaries
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2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has right to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Subsidiaries of the University, The Open University of Hong Kong
(China) Limited (“OU-China”) and OUHK Consultants (Shenzhen)
Limited (“OU-Shenzhen™), are with 31st December financial year end.
OU-Shenzhen is incorporated in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"). To comply with the PRC regulations, its financial year end
has to be 31st December. The principal activity of OU-China is mainly
investment holding in OU-Shenzhen. It is more appropriate to have
OU-China with the same financial year end date co-terminous with
that of its sole subsidiary.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.
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2.2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date through surplus or deficit.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be
an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 either
in surplus or deficit or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the University on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is required upon
receiving dividends from the investment if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2.4

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is carried at cost, including related transaction costs,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of the investment properties over their estimated useful lives of 50
years. Where the carrying amount of an investment property is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in surplus or deficit during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at the cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is stated at cost which includes development
and construction expenditure and other direct costs attributable to
the development less any accumulated impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment
and depreciated accordingly, upon completion and/or receipt of the
occupation permit issued by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“"HKSAR") Government, where applicable.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

026 027



e MR RAR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TLAERE

2.

2.4

2.5

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

TEETHRME (&)

R - MEBRERME (W)

ME  BELBRENTERBERETE
REARAIRIA T SR A EREI#E D =
MEE

SRR HTHEH
IS i
=&Y —tERTFHE
B8 B EEE
REKA hFHANHEER
IABRE & {4

KA KERRHE ==0F
R

EEBEEERBEREER  OREENR
HREERAEREY  AREMEHE

ERBEENREESNE G ATREE
18 EAREERIF HUR E FJ B E(E -

Bt

i3

HEZESEBLEMEFREERAERE
E 0 WRERA IR HER ©

|ERE - EMkG

BAZ BT ABERA REEADERR
ERGZEREKRAERREE - BILEET
BRARERERBRESIM - WRTKAP
BUCHIBILRT TR RSN -

ARBEZERERABRREZFEMRART
AP ERARENEERARBXER -

R RAE BMEHRE G T RS
SEEHRE -

REERRMG ZBERREERER R

2018-2019 ###8 & FINANCIAL REPORT

2.4

2.5

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as Remaining lease period

finance lease

Buildings 20 - 50 years or lease period,

whichever is shorter

Renovation costs 5 years or period of tenancy

agreement whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets "residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets — computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and any directly attributable cost of preparing the
asset for its intended use. The intangible assets are initially recognised
at costs less impairment losses and are amortised upon completion of
the user-acceptance test.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software
product include costs of employee benefits and professional fees
arising directly from bringing the asset to its working condition.

Computer software recognised as assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of three years.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.



e MR R AR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TTAEE

2.

2.6

2.7

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

TEETHRME (&)

b 5 R 4

TR LY SEBRERENRE - T
EALHFT B - SEBEUCRK L T3 A
e RRBERAEINNEERE/SEN
REHER - RS THERE - LiER
AR R & Rt H M REHRER R (10
B) DI - BIHEZ T HEREN B RN
(B+F) NERETE -

EHEE

271 5%

BT/ \FOA—A FAEEBESH
REMEMESMEESBAHBBBERR
RN FE B H S FE BE S AR
AR AR TEEERSRIEERE
e BEE s EHERXN MBS RES DK
e

EEAEMERRFAEOEHUAL LS
BE - REES G ER D REFRE -

(a) WEHR AN S REE
HWEREEERBNRBRRANAETR
B MRFEENREREE/IMAR
RS - RIS EERBHKAE -
ZEEBRDEE  BWRAERE

SREREBA T —EAZ 2 RIEIER
BEE
()‘ﬂ%é%&% NP EE(CNEREE

BEARRRATEZCHNEREE
Ehﬁ%W$%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁEﬁh%
SEEETREEERENRERRAE
ﬂEZZéEEEE§F§° IRz BERE QT
B FRARBDEE

R-ZE-\FOA—-BA SEHEREE
DR THIRERR - EREERER - BB
BaXRRAFEERZCNSREEANS
ERIHeREE - Zn BRESREED
RZE D - ERVERSREER - B1EE
EELZEREENDHE -

2.

2.6

2.7

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Land use right

All land in the People’s Republic of China is stated-owned or
collectively-owned and no individual land ownership exists. The Group
acquires the right to use certain land. The premiums paid for such right
are treated as prepayment for operating lease and recorded as land
use rights, which are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). Land use rights are amortised
over the lease period of 50 years using the straight-line method.

Financial assets

2.7.1 Classification

From 1st April 2018, the Group classifies its financial investments and
other financial assets either those to be measured subsequently at
fair value through profit or loss, or those to be measured at amortised
The classification depends on the entity’'s business model for
managing the financial investments and other financial assets and the

cost.

contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its
business model for managing those assests changes.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where

(@)

those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost.
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of
reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.

They are included in current

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets which are managed in accordance with internal documented
risk management guidelines or investment strategy provided by the
Group’s key management personnel. Assets in this category are

stated at fair value and classified as current assets.

Before 1st April 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and held-to-maturity financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. The management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
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2.

2.7

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

2.7.1 Classification (continued)

(@) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets which are managed in accordance with internal documented
risk management guidelines or investment strategy provided by the
Group’ s key management personnel. Assets in this category are
stated at fair value and classified as current assets.

(c) Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold
to maturity. If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category
would be tainted and reclassified as available for sale. Held-to-
maturity financial assets are included in non-current assets, except
for those with maturities less than 12 months from the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as current assets.

2.7.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

2.7.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

From 1st April 2018, interest income from financial assets at amortised
cost is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses), together

#=/ (BE) - REBERGEEBREZRAN with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
BERIEE 25 - presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income within ‘interest and
investment income” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as part of other income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Before 1st April 2018, held-to-maturity investments are initially
recognized at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment loss.

2.7.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the University, its subsidiaries or
the counterparty.
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2.8

29

2.10

2.11

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Stock of course materials

Stock of course materials are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses
or value in use, wherever appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Receivables

Receivables include tuition fee receivables, student loan receivables
and other receivables incurred under the ordinary course of business.
If collection of receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

The Group measures the expected credit losses using a lifetime
expected loss allowance for tuition fee receivables and student
loan receivables. For other receivables, the Group measures the
expected credit losses using 12 months expected loss allowance.
The expected loss rates are based on the historical observed default
rates adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Impairment losses on receivables are recognised within operating
result. Receivables are written off (either partially or in full) when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2.

2.12

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

From 1st April 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For accounts receivable and student loan receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on financial assets measured at amortised cost other
than accounts receivable and student loan receivables is measured
as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a financial asset measured at amortised cost other than
accounts receivable and student loan receivables has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.
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2.12

2.13

2.14

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When there is a significant increase in credit risk or the receivables are
not settled in accordance with the terms stipulated in the agreements,
management considers these receivables as underperforming or
non-performing and impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.

When management considers that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery, the financial assets measured at amortised cost will be
written off.

Until 31st March 2018, for loan and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer or student, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer or student
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide
services to the customer or student. The contract is a liability and
recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining
performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining
rights. The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customer or student within contract assets if the
Group expects to recover those costs.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. No provision
will be made for future anticipated operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlements is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.
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2.15

2.16

2.17

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Payables

Accounts payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business. Payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Loans from the HKSAR Government

Loans are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Loans are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the loans using the
effective interest method.

Loans are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Operating leases

Leases (including land use rights) in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed to surplus
or deficit on a straight-line basis over the periods of the leases.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred income
tax. Tax is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences
Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary differences

arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Income recognition

Student fee income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the courses to which it relates.

Miscellaneous fees consist of application fee, advance standing
claim fee, graduation fee, etc.; and are recognised when services are
rendered.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease period.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Miscellaneous income is recognised on an accruals basis.
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2.19

2.20

2.21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Income recognition (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue by timing of
satisfaction of performance obligations:

2019
$’000

Revenue from contracts with customers and students
At a point in time 44,876
Over time 1,185,453
1,230,329
Revenue from other sources 109,829
1,340,158

Capital fund, deferred capital fund and other specific funds

The capital fund is set up to reflect funds of the Group allocated for
the purchase or construction of property, plant and equipment. They
are released to match with depreciation of related assets over their
useful lives or upon disposal of property, plant and equipment.

The deferred capital fund is set up to reflect grants and donations
earmarked for the purchase or construction of property, plant and
equipment. The fund will be recognised as income to match with the
depreciation charge of the related assets over their useful lives or
upon disposal of property, plant and equipment.

Other specific funds are set up to support the Group's activities
such as course development, student loan scheme, research
projects, scholarships and bursaries to students, building
maintenance, IT development, etc. They are released when the
related expenses are incurred.

Donations and benefactions

General donations and benefactions are recognised as income when
right to receive has been established.

Specific donations and benefactions received or receivable (other
than for purchase or construction of property, plant and equipment
which are dealt with as deferred capital fund in note 2.20 above) are
initially recorded as deferred income and recognised as income over
the periods to match with the related expenditure.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.21 Donations and benefactions (continued)

Matching grants are recognised as income when grants have been
received or are receivable from the Government.

Other government grant or sponsorship (other than for purchase or
construction of property, plant and equipment which are dealt with as
deferred capital fund in note 2.20 above), together with the interest
income arising therefrom, is recorded as deferred income, when
there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching with it and that the grant or the sponsorship will
be received. They are recognised as income over the period to match
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

2.22 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the University's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in surplus or deficit.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities, such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are
recognised in surplus or deficit as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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2.22 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group entities

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate of the balance sheet date;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unutilised annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlement to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Retirement scheme obligations

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes in Hong Kong are expensed as incurred.

The Group contributes to an employee retirement scheme
established by municipal government in respect of a subsidiary
in the PRC. The municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of this subsidiary. Contributions to this scheme are
expensed as incurred.



e MR R AR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B TTAEE

2.

2.24

2.25

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

TEEEEME ()

EEEE

EERARELRRESA BT RT X
e OAEERRRKE BEREEEE-
EREFEEGTREARLESE - AH
DT AERE -

ERBBEREERA D 2tEERAE
HEEEEXH  BERAELRRER
ZEBEEERERAIME 2R EEETHR
RIREANL - EXE DT REBEERE
EERERIHEZ RO R H LT
X BERAENMETEEHALL -

ERTETIR
TROTETANSENITETAAK

AZARERR  EREAAEEHN:
DABZHREREEBSTRTER

o)

ﬁ
ok ¥
ok
—
<t

el

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.24 Borrowing costs

2.25

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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3. B¥ERREARREKEE 3. Financial risk and capital risk management
3.1 MHEREER 3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) HMNER B (a) Foreign exchange risk

HREEEREMAMEE -
MEAXZKBEIFUNEB AR 2T
REEBREMNZRARARER G R
ERREENER  TBERES
REFZMNER

CHEBUERTREE -

TRETEERT R AR/ BER

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
mainly in connection with investment in securities, certain of
which the currencies are not the Group entities” functional
currencies.

The majority of them are denominated in US dollars
("UsD").

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the

EEHEINEE RO gEM & IR E balance sheet date to reasonable possible changes in the
BHHE  BIIEREMEESR foreign currency exchange rates, with all other variables
o BIR B INEE R Al e i held constant, on the Group's surplus/deficit after income
SR EHFRE B 1% © tax. 1% is the sensitivity rate that represents management’s
assessment of the reasonable possible change in foreign
exchange rates.
S8 ShEEERELEFH / (FEK) HERER  BRIRE
Foreign Currency Increase/ (decrease) in exchange rate Effect on surplus/deficit for the year
% $°000
2019
ET 1 12,543
ush () (12,543)
2018
ET 1 11,979
USsD 1) (11,979)
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3. BERKEAREREMER (&) 3. Financial risk and capital risk

management (continued)
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity and debt securities price
risk because investments held by the Group are classified
as designated financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The Group's investment policy is to prudently invest all
funds managed by the Group in a manner which will satisfy
liquidity requirements, safeguard financial assets and
manage risks while optimising return on investments.

Investment and fund management is governed by
investment policies and risk management guidelines
approved by the Council. Investment restrictions and
guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Specific
restrictions and guidelines are set for each fund in
accordance with its investment objectives. In addition,
specific limits are set for each fund to control risks (e.g.
permissible asset type, asset allocation, liquidity, credit,
counterparty concentration, maturity, foreign exchange and
interest rate risks) of the investments.

The Group has a Finance Committee which monitors the
risk and performance of its investments while external
fund managers have also been appointed to manage the
investment funds. The external fund managers are stable
and financially strong financial institutions.
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3. ERREARMRERE (&) 3. Financial risk and capital risk

3.1 MEmMBEER (M)

(o) EREE (8)

management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Price risk (continued)

TRETRENGEER - F5M The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to range
BEHFMREESHE QT EFS®K from 0.73% to 1.03% (2018: 0.73% to 1.01%) increase/
0.73% £ 1.03% (ZF — J\F: decrease in the fair values of the equity and debt
0.73% £ 1.01%) MBURE « A securities with all other variables held constant, based on
EEMEETE RNGRHIETE - their carrying amounts at the balance sheet date.

2019

BHEFNEBIRIZER
H EF+0.73% = 1.03%

BHEFNERIZER
HL R T 0.73% = 1.03%

2018
BHNEHFNERIZER
R EF0.73% = 1.01%
BHNEHFNERIZER
LR T 0.73% = 1.01%

HERNRER  BR2XE
Effect on surplus/
deficit for the year
$°000
Increase in prices of equity and debt securities with
applicable rates ranging from 0.73% to 1.03% 13,866
Decrease in prices of equity and debt securities with
applicable rates ranging from 0.73% to 1.03% (13,866)
Increase in prices of equity and debt securities with
applicable rates ranging from 0.73% to 1.01% 13,959
Decrease in prices of equity and debt securities with
applicable rates ranging from 0.73% to 1.01% (13,959)
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3.

3.1

Financial risk and capital risk
management (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its deposits with
banks and investment managers, held-to-maturity financial assets,

student loan receivables and accounts and other receivables.

At the balance sheet date, there was no concentration of credit
risk. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amounts of cash deposits with banks, held-to-
maturity financial assets, student loan receivables and accounts

and other receivables.

The Group has policies in place for the control and monitoring its
credit risk. Fee income primarily has to be received in advance
before service is rendered. Deposits are placed with banks and
investment managers which are all high-credit-quality financial
institutions. Follow-up action is taken in case of overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
receivables individually to identify any irrecoverable amounts to

ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for them.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet
liabilities and/or financial commitments as they fall due, and it
results from the amount and maturity mismatch of assets and

liabilities.

The Group has prudent liquidity risk management policy in place
by maintaining sufficient cash and short-term bank deposits and
keeping investments sufficiently liquid to meet the operating
needs. The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to
manage liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash required
and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all

liabilities due and known funding requirements could be met.
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3. ERREARMRERE (&) 3. Financial risk and capital risk
management (continued)

3.1 MHEEEER () 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

d) mBESRER (B) (d) Liquidity risk (continued)
TRIEZEBINBASWEERNS The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
BEE YREREEANEGH as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual
RABGIRFKIERTE undiscounted payments, was as follows:

—FR —F£ERF hEE #at
Within 1 year 1to5years After5years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2019

BB EIRER Government loans, secured 31,700 281,040 231,360 544,100

FERBRIA Accounts payables and

FEETER accrued expenses 116,774 - 116,774
148,474 281,040 231,360 660,874

2018

BB ERER Government loans, secured 43,700 148,550 82,450 274,700

FERTER R R Accounts payables and

fEETE A accrued expenses 113,476 - 113,476
157,176 148,550 82,450 388,176

2018-2019 M ¥ # & FINANCIAL REPORT
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3. MBRERKREXARMERE (F)

3.1 MEmMBEER (M)

©

BERERAFENERER

SEYENESREE - KREZ
BeRngkrFENERREE
RREMREEFEMRESFEN
BEREEMNMNRMEMESE -

TRETEER AR / BER
SEAHFRTLAA REDY
BUBE - AR R EAETE -

BITHER - RHERT  HeRALSH/Y

3. Financial risk and capital risk
management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(e) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no interest-bearing financial liabilities. The
Group is exposed to cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk through the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing
financial assets, mainly the cash and cash equivalents
and debt securities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to reasonable possible changes in the
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, on the
Group’s surplus/deficit after income tax.

(LIARRBERT) FIEEF/ (FEE) HERBRE  BRZEE

Bank deposits, investment in bonds and cash Increase/(decrease) Effect on surplus/

and cash equivalents in different currencies in interest rate deficit for the year
% $'000

2019

BT 1 13,033

HKD (1) (13,033)

BT 1 2118

Non-HKD (1) (2,118)

HeEt 1 15,151

Total (1) (15,151)

2018

BT 1 7,946

HKD (1) (7,946)

FEBTT 1 3,273

Non-HKD (1) (8,273)

et 1 11,219

Total (1) (11,219)
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3.2

3.3

— j:/‘r/v
TUEEE

Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

R RERRREE (F)

BxEREE

SEZENEREREREER ZF
BRRERN NRHERNESHRR
BEMF MREREBEARRBARN
RIRERE ©

SEEEEERIEEGK IELRT
KNREARYER  BAEERER B
AEAHAX RIER RRRERS &
BN A B R B IR A AN AT
REMKEEARNRE -

AR

TRIBBEHE AR BERGERTF
PrEREINE ARER - DT AEEIZ

RABEANRNERTA - ELHAR
BARBERBRBESINTN=E :

- AFE RS EEERT R E
(GRiEBEE) (5—F8) -

s BRTFE—BRE/RNBZREN  ZE
EMBENABEENEBEA - 7
REE (APInER) s (BR
BER) (F=F) -

o BENABILIMKRAIBEREMSEE
mEA (BISERBIRBA) (=)

2018-2019 ###8 & FINANCIAL REPORT

3.

3.2

3.3

Financial risk and capital risk
management (continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide sufficient funding to support the existing
operations and to maintain a strong capital base for future
development of its business.

The Group’s management actively and regularly reviews
and manages its capital structure to ensure an optimal
capital structure, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditure and
projected strategic investment opportunities.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three
levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

* Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3. MKERKREXARREE (F) 3. Financial risk and capital risk

management (continued)

3.3 AFE{E ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

TREASER-_ZE—NF=A=1— The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities
AN—ZE—N\F=ZA=+—HURFE that are measured at fair value at 31st March 2019 and 2018:
BAENEEREE:
£—B - - { e #at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $°000 $°000 $7000

R-Z2—hAE=A=+—H As at 31st March 2019

gE Assets
ARBRRREATEE Designated financial assets at

B emEE fair value through profit or loss

ELETIRE Unlisted investments

- BEES - Unit trusts

- ErEkmEe - Fixed income funds

-EF - Bonds

- REeREE TR - Deposits at financial institutions

EmigE Listed investments
PTHEERMEE Derivative financial assets
REEE Total assets

BR-Z2—)\FE=H=+—H As at 31st March 2018

gE Assets
MmBBEmERMEATERE Designated financial assets at
B emEE fair value through profit or loss
ELTIRE Unlisted investments
- BiEEES - Unit trusts
-BEWEES - Fixed income funds
-EF - Bonds
- REREE 27 - Deposits at financial institutions
EmigE Listed investments
MEEE Total assets

665,148 - - 665,148
752,291 - - 752,291
148,170 - = 148,170
10,016 - = 10,016

537 - - 537

90 - = 90
1,576,252 - - 1,576,252
793,921 - - 793,921
497,457 - = 497,457
187,046 - = 187,046
30,002 - - 30,002
622 - - 622
1,509,048 - - 1,509,048
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BHERRERRRERE (&)

SFEER (1)

HERTSEENERTANAAER
REEERBXRANTSRENE - &
WERBIRMEMEESFZ I - X5
&4 FRAL - EERGESRE
EREERS  MEZFERERRRAFR
SHEEETNEEMERT S5
ATISIRIR AR - AEBHFENER
BENMSRE/ERFETRE - 1tF
TEBREGESEE-

WEREEMSEE 2 TR (R
BRHZITETR) ZRAEENGE
EEE - ZFHEERERABEMEF
SR - MBKBEERREEAT
izt E TANHEMAERRARIERS
REEMS WETARREFE _E-
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3.

3.3

Financial risk and capital risk
management (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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4.

BERE AT RER

AEESREBELRIAMESE - flnE
BRI TR FFNAEERS - 6
AHEPTER AT SRR -

REBEARKAELIEE RRE - IS 285
mEtEim LR GMERAERERN o AT
T HEEARE R AT RS T A R
BEMBENRIERFEAFENEHE
At MR e

W - HEs LR BEANEERAENE D -

BNRERERIMNENHEARME - DA
ERAEEYNOITEREERA - ARl
RBAZMNRPEARLNENEE L1
KZEYMERT - HREEYNITERE
R

FRMBRFORE AT -

SERBENCR A U E B 2 FHE AT R
FEUERFURE 2 - EREAISHFEESLR
BEME - BURRA e AN D - (EEHE
RREZER - R U FORER R RER
HET N bR - BTRHEE OIS TARE - MW
FAZRSFERIIRINEREE - BYSR
REBEE NIRRT ) FERER

ME - Wz KRR BVEERREMERZ
(CRDINEGES R

AEEEEESEHE T MERR LA
SEE BB R FEEMBESRREER
m2 AR - EEAREYE - #E R
B BREERKREME A ERSE
B o Al e M HIE e R bR E TR - EIE
EBRERIITE LMEER - i LB
B AR Bk h 6 2 FEAR RS B A M MR
EREBE IR e B RIRNMERT A E RS -
TE B Al e 2 (T B HIABUR R EE 2
e/ #iEREE -

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Separation of prepayment of lease premium from property, plant and
equipment:

The valuation of prepayment of lease premium has been performed
by an external valuer by valuing the depreciated replacement cost of
the buildings and then deducting the depreciated replacement cost
of the buildings from the initial consideration paid for the leasehold
land and the building in the People’s Republic of China.

Estimated impairment of receivables:

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. Provisions are
applied to receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of impairment of receivables requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will have impact on the carrying value of
receivables and impairment of receivables is recognised in the year
in which such estimates have been changed.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and investment properties:

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and investment properties with reference to the estimated lease
period of the leasehold land, expected technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in the market
and that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets. Management will revise the depreciation and
amortisation charges where useful lives are different to previously
estimated, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation/
amortisation expense in future periods.
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5. H<&{EBfF#{#E2 Funds and reserves

FREE
Movements for the year
MEBIFAT
MR RMEE
ZEREH
Exchange
difference
arising from
®RE ESRfifRe translation R-Z2—hEF
RZE—N\F WARZH ZEHSE of a foreign =BA=1+—H
MmA—HZ &R Income/ Reallocation subsidiary’s ZEERR
As at expenditure of funds financial As at
1st April 2018 recognition and reserves statements 31st March 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SHE® Specific Funds
General Development
—REREE Reserve 100,000 (2,058) 2,058 - 100,000
BEERES Student Loan Fund 155,051 1,100 - - 156,151
Donations and
SNFRIBED Benefactions 35,100 (630) - - 34,470
REIEE RE Building Related
2HEES Facilities Sinking Fund 18,972 (263) (2,678) - 16,031
BERER Capital Fund - (38) 2,678 - 2,640
SEERBEES ~ Statutory Reserve Fund 475 - - - 475
309,598 (1,889) 2,058 - 309,767
— R General Reserve 2,580,280 334,926 (2,058) - 2,913,148
FRRE Surplus for the year 333,037
ERH Exchange Reserve 4,868 - - (1,362) 3,506
2,894,746 333,037 - (1,362) 3,226,421

N RBHRBEED ORI AREGELFMNENED Z TENEERBES - BECRBESEIEMRANBELZHT1Z -
BAMF LBRNEERBHESD -
Under the PRC regulations, OU-Shenzhen is required to transfer 10% of its net profit to the Statutory Reserve Fund.
Appropriation to the Statutory Reserve Fund may cease when the balance of such reserve fund has reached 50% of the
registered share capital.

HE_ZZ—F+_A=+—0 RIAROEEFHEESEEITMRANES 2HT « Bt - RN KBH_TZ
“FRDRANKBIERPER TR BHEES -

As at 31st December 2001, the balance of Statutory Reserve Fund has attained 50% of its registered share capital. As
a result, there was no appropriation transferred to this reserve fund account from Recurrent Account since 2002.
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5. E&HFZES (&) Funds and reserves (continued)

BRESR

—ARERRGEE

SNRIRE)

BEIRARB

EERHBREE N

—RR
FRRR
ER R

Specific Funds

General Development
Reserve

Student Loan Fund

Donations and
Benefactions

Building Related
Facilities Sinking Fund

Capital Fund

Statutory Reserve Fund

General Reserve
Surplus for the year

Exchange Reserve

FRRE

Movements for the year

HEBIFLT
MBHWRAEE

ZEREH
Exchange
difference
arising from

BRs EfREHER translation RIZ—N\E§E

*=2—tF WARZH ZEHSE of a foreign =RA=+—H

MA—HZ ek Income/ Reallocation subsidiary’s 4

As at expenditure of funds financial As at

1st April 2017 recognition and reserves statements 31st March 2018

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

100,000 ) 3 100,000

152,783 2,268 - 155,051

33,952 1,148 - 35,100

18,972 - 18,972

9 9) - -

475 - 475

306,191 3,404 3 309,598

2,275,565 304,718 3) 2,580,280
308,122

3,557 1,311 4,868

2,585,313 308,122 1,311 2,894,746

N REBHPBEGD RN ARESEFMNENEDZ TENEEREBES - BECRBEDEIEMRANBELZHT1Z -
BAMF FBRNEERBEES -
Under the PRC regulations, OU-Shenzhen is required to transfer 10% of its net profit to the Statutory Reserve Fund.
Appropriation to the Statutory Reserve Fund may cease when the balance of such reserve fund has reached 50% of the
registered share capital.

BE-TTHT-A=1—0  RYAAOETERBESDENERRANES 2+ - Bt BYIAKB-TE

“FEESAREFERFEETUR L REES

As at 31st December 2001, the balance of Statutory Reserve Fund has attained 50% of its registered share capital. As
a result, there was no appropriation transferred to this reserve fund account from Recurrent Account since 2002.
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6.

REYE Investment properties

2019 2018
$’000 $'000
5% 3 Cost
RIUA—B &% At 1st April 168,120 167,589
ME 5, 38 B Exchange adjustment (410) 531
M=A=+—Bz#&& At 31st March 167,710 168,120
REHhE Accumulated depreciation
RO A—R 2 &k At 1st April 22,183 18,281
FRNFEEH Depreciation for the year 3,528 3,519
b 5, Exchange adjustment (319) 383
R=A=+—Hz#sk At 31st March 25,392 22,183
R=ZA=+—HZREPE Net book value at 31st March 142,318 145,937

RZZB-NF+ZA=+—0  RINAAKRFENREDENATFEBERLEE TEEN T (Z2—tF : \BTN\E
=Fn) WHEBERH MBI EXRNAEERTR — KAMTHEBRBERAR - LARMISEEIEREEMETHE -
HAERR L@ AENFBERER T \F+ A=+ —RAZ 2 EFFIRME9 -

The fair value of the investment properties in PRC of OU-Shenzhen at 31st December 2018 was $7,554,000 (2017:
$8,083,000), representing the valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers,
on an open market value basis. Details and the fair value as at 31st December 2018 of the corresponding land use right
are disclosed in note 9.

RIZB-NAF=A=+—0B REREBENREVENATEER=FEZLABL(ZT-N\F: —RfNA\T—EHET)"
tEHEBERA B EENEERR — kFTHEBRRBERAR , LARMISEEEREEMETHE

The fair value of the investment properties of the University in Hong Kong at 31st March 2019 was $307,000,000 (2018:
$281,000,000) representing the valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers, on an open market value basis.
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7. Y% - #EERR1E Property, plant and equipment

HELTHER &R -KE
BEY Ra&fE
Leasehold RERX #EEZI#E  Furniture, B
land and Renovation Construction fixtures and Motor |
buildings costs inprogress equipment vehicles Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
5% 3 Cost
RZZT—\F
WA—BZ&#% At 1st April 2018 1,583,068 173,694 30,858 214,641 1,334 2,008,595
NE Additions - 19,220 99,324 15,450 - 133,994
Transfer from Construction
HAFRETR in progress - 179 (179) - - -
HE / #isH Disposal/write-off - (482) - (13,408) - (13,890)
D& 3 Exchange adjustment (36) - - (96) - (132)
R-E—NE
=A=1+—H
ZEERR At 31st March 2019 1,583,032 192,611 130,008 216,587 1,334 2,123,567
RithE Accumulated depreciation
RZZT—\F
WA—BZ&#% At ist April 2018 311,319 120,112 - 182,236 1,135 614,802
WEER (M5t a) Depreciation (Note a) 50,174 20,134 - 17,202 140 87,650
B /e Disposal/write-off - (407) - (13,390) - (13,797)
b i E Exchange adjustment (14) - - (76) - (90)
RZE—NFE
—A=+—H
2 EERR At 31st March 2019 361,479 139,839 - 185,972 1,275 688,565
RZZT—NEF
=HA=+—H  Netbook value at
2 BREFE 31st March 2019 1,221,553 52,772 130,003 30,615 59 1,435,002
Bif3E Note :
(@ FAMEEAA:
Depreciation for the year was charged against:
$’000
TR Administrative expenditure 57,055
EmhiEE) Other activities 30,595
87,650

RIZE—AFZA=1+—H8  UANEESFOH A\t _BrEEHER L (REFE: tESRtEEx) BRE
ERBEBFIITREBRNNREEER

As at 31st March 2019, Kwai Hing Learning Centre at 8th to 12th floor of Kowloon Commerce Centre Il amounting to the
net book value of HK$700.57 million has been pledged to secure the interest-free loan from the HKSAR Government.
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7. W% - #ESNR1E (&) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

HARtiR 8 KB
EED Bk fim
Leasehold RERF #£8T% Furniture, ELi
land and Renovation Construction fixtures and Motor Fob ]
buildings costs inprogress equipment vehicles Total
$°000 $000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $000
%3 Cost
RZT—+F
PUH—B 2458 At 1st April 2017 1582917 153,265 5,469 203,236 1,334 1,946,221
NE Additions 105 20,163 30,093 8,355 - 58,716
Transfer from Construction
EATETRE in progress - 266 (4,704) 4,438 -
HE / #isH Disposal/write-off - - - (1,509) - (1,509)
P& i % Exchange adjustment 46 - - 121 - 167
R-Z—N\F
—A=+—H
2 EEgR At 31st March 2018 1,583,068 173,694 30,858 214,641 1,334 2,003,595
RetinE Accumulated depreciation
RNoE—+4F
WA—B &8 At st April 2017 261,119 97,682 - 166,285 995 526,081
WEEMA (Mita) Depreciation (Note a) 50,188 22,430 - 17,339 140 90,097
HE / #isH Disposal/write-off - - - (1,489) - (1,489)
ME 3 B Exchange adjustment 12 - - 101 - 113
RZE—N\F
=A=+—H~
2 iR At 31st March 2018 311,319 120,112 - 182,236 1,135 614,802
RZZE-N\F
ZA=+—H  Netbook value at
2 EREFE 31st March 2018 1,271,749 53,582 30,858 32,405 199 1,388,793
Bfi5E Note :
(@) FRITEBERTA
Depreciation for the year was charged against:
$’000
TR Administrative expenditure 58,051
HAb7EE)  Other activities 32,046
90,097

R_Z—N\FZA=Z+—A URNEESP LN \E+_BzEEBKERL (RAFE: tE—TAEET+—81)
EREEREEFITHRRBANEEER

As at 31st March 2018, Kwai Hing Learning Centre at 8th to 12th floor of Kowloon Commerce Centre || amounting to the
net book value of HK$716.41 million has been pledged to secure the interest-free loan from the HKSAR Government.

2018-2019 M ¥ # & FINANCIAL REPORT



e MR R AR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LABTT4EE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

8. #EXEE Intangible assets

2019 2018

$’000 $°000

AP A—BZERmFE Net book value as at 1st April 9,721 14,938
REERE Additions for the year - 860

NFE Amortisation for the year (6,235) (6,077)
R=A=1+—BZEREFE Net book value as at 31st March 3,486 9,721

BEEEBRANEREBRGZBAKARERLTESRTE BiR 2 BEEKA -
The intangible assets represent the cost of human resources management system acquired and direct attributable costs
incurred.

9. tihff F# Land use right

2019 2018

$’000 $'000

RO A—B 2 BREFE Net book value as at 1st April 5,687 5,558
NFE Amortisation for the year (196) (191)
b H Exchange adjustment (234) 320
A= A=+—HZRmEFE Net book value as at 31st March 5,257 5,687

A N\F+A=+—8, RNAKRECRPEN LIERENATFTEERNTF—B AT \EOFT(ZT—+F:

NF—_BNATE=Fr) EFEE=T=ZBATAE=FTT(ZZ—+F . =FTHEtT=Z8NTx) REVEZ TifE
AER_ZZ—NEFT_A=T—A0NR2FEE - HIHEESR —MELEENEERR — KATHERBRRERA A,
NARATISEEFERELEMEITHE -
The fair value of land use right in the PRC of OU-Shenzhen at 31st December 2018 was $41,884,000 (2017: $42,803,000),
representing the valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers, on an open
market value basis. Out of $41,884,000 (2017: $42,803,000), $33,993,000 (2017: $34,739,000) represents the fair value of the
land portion of the investment properties as at 31st December 2018.

RN FEREMEREYNHFBEIER T/ \F+ A=+ —RZ R FEFTIRHEE6 -
Details and the fair value as at 31st December 2018 of the building portion of the investment properties erected on this piece
of land are disclosed in note 6.
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10. F72 7] Subsidiaries

RBFRAEZHBWT
Details of the University's subsidiaries are as follows:

DT R RBFR1ER

NCIEL Place of incorporation FE¥# FRi5 B8

Name and operation Principal activities  Interest held

FBRARAR (PE)BERAT BB ERRRE 100%

The Open University of Hong Kong Investment holding (E#¥EA direct holding)
Hong Kong (China) Limited

NAREREER ORY) BRAR  HEARKLNEH TR EER RS 100%

OUHK Consultants The People’s Republic Provision of (FE##EA indirect holding)
(Shenzhen) Limited of China consultancy services
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11. €@ T A% ¥ Financial instruments by category

2019 2018
$’000 $'000
SMEE Financial assets
BB RREATEEE Financial assets at fair value
NEREE through profit or loss
- mEBmARM AT EEZ L - Designated financial assets at fair
HIBLTE R EE (MIFE 15) value through profit or loss (Note 15) 1,576,162 1,509,048
- THESREE - Deriviative financial assets 90 -
1,576,252 1,509,048
SREE - B Financial assets at amortised cost
- FHEERYHEREE - Held-to-maturity financial assets
(PFFE 14(a)) (Note 14(a)) - 98,008
- RS AR SRR E - Financial investments at
(FI7E 14 (b)) amortised cost (Note 14 (b)) 143,532 -
- B AR (M 12) - Student loan receivables (Note 12) 31,409 25,662
- FEUARTR - H U BR R - Accounts receivable, other
Nigs (M 13) receivables and deposits (Note 13) 91,235 68,443
- REIEAREA=EA 2 - Bank deposits with original maturities
RITERRBEE RS over three months and cash
ZBY (MtsE 16) and cash equivalents (Note 16) 1,437,265 887,101
1,703,441 1,079,304
3,279,693 2,588,352
eRMER Financial liabilities
REHEKANEMERAE Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
- EERR R IEETER - Accounts payable and accrued
(BtEE17) expenses (Note 17) 116,774 113,476
- BUSEHEHE R (i 20) - Government loans, secured (Note 20) 483,315 252,323
600,089 365,799
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12. B E 4+ B Student loan receivables

2019 2018

$’000 $'000

R EE R Student loan receivables 31,439 25,677

B R EEELEE Less: Provision for impairment (30) (15)
R=A=1T—B2z#&&% - Balance as at 31st March,

FrEdE 2 s NEER R maximum exposure to credit risk 31,409 25,662

HER Represented by:

—FRNERZ TR Repayable within one year 6,470 5,552

—FRERZTRE Repayable after one year 24,939 20,110

31,409 25,662

JEW B EEHA T EERLRIEEMETREENDEEWIAESE - ERBDBONEKRBEER AR REE
o AEERERmST - HAR S BUERM -

The fair values of student loan receivables approximate their carrying values for both financial years and are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. No discounting to non-current portion of student loan receivables is made as the discounting effect
is insignificant given low interest rate in the financial market.

REER  DaELRREZ BRKBEERZ RO !

The ageing analysis for the student loan receivables that are past due but not impaired as at the balance sheet date is as

follows:
2019 2018
$’000 $'000
[t Past due by:
BEA—F A Within 1 year 149 188
BME—FE_FNR More than 1 year and up to 2 years 38 -
B —FE=FNA More than 2 years and up to 3 years 3 -

REBERBEBUBHMEERSE O SFAFAER BT AT ERREERE - RUMERKELEEFRALPENEEER
Bt -

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all student loan receivables.

RZZE-NF=ZA=+—0 ERELEERXFN=BT(ZZ—/\F —BATT)BHRERE WE2EELRAERIELERE -
At 31st March 2019, student loan receivables of $30,000 (2018: $15,000) were impaired and full provision has been made
accordingly.
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12. EWE LB (&) Student loan receivables (continued)

RSB EEFURERRERNZE T

Movements on the provision for impairment of student loan receivables are as follows:

2019 2018
$’000 $°000
RO A —H 2z &k Balance as at 1st April 15 105
RIEERLER - B Provision for impairment, included
EEMEEN 2 FAEZ in expenses under other activities 30 -
R R BRI Uk Bl 2 5RIE Written off during the year as uncollectible (15) (90)
R=A=+—HBz#&#% Balance as at 31st March 30 15

KENR A RBRKBEETFEEAERRIERER

The Group does not hold any collateral as security for the student loan receivables.

13. BUERR - At EWERN - ANRERRE
Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments and deposits

2019 2018

$’000 $°000

FEUER TR Accounts receivable 3,801 19,975
o FEUAR K Other receivables 69,924 31,170
Be Deposits 17,510 17,298
FrEdE 2 R NEERMR Maximum exposure to credit risk 91,235 68,443
TERTFIE Prepayments 26,653 23,305
117,888 91,748

FENBR R ~ B FEIERSR - TENFUE LIRS N A P EEAREEEMEM BFEE NGRS - WEZLEEE -
The fair values of accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments and deposits approximate their carrying values for
both financial years and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

REBERAEAVBRELENFEIRATEAZE A ATERREEEE HERKRTEA L BEREEEERE -
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime expected
loss allowance for accounts receivable.

REEz HEKERES M@ RMEEERR - RBEBHBRELERNE 9 K2 FRMER - HEMAAHEMBRER LIRS
KRt @A B EEEERE -

The Group'’s other receivables and deposits are considered to have low credit risk. Under HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss
model, the Group measures expected credit losses which use a 12-month expected loss allowance for all other receivables and
deposits.
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13. BUERN - HtEWERR - BANRERERE (&)
Accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments and deposits (continued)
REZZ-AF=ZA=+—H  TIRYERZ N EAEUERSRE BE BT ARE « ZFREIRFRERE TP R 0 5e Bk
BEREBE o 2B RWIRRZ FREDOMAT
As of 31st March 2019, the following accounts and other receivables were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers and students for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:

2019 2018
$’000 $'000

B - Past due by:
BE VR —EAZE=EAH Less than 1 month and up to 3 months 1,774 2,362
BE— (B A =N EA More than 3 months and up to 6 months 1,162 117
%60 BB A 7N {6 A More than 6 months 339 166
3,275 2,645

HME R e FEUERR - HMEIKER - ENFUAKRS T MR 22 REERE - REWESA T ERRIERR -
The other classes within accounts receivable, other receivables, prepayments and deposits do not contain impaired assets. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

14. €REE  RBHERK
Financial assets at amortised cost

() FEEIHERMEE

Held-to-maturity financial assets

2019 2018

$’000 $'000

BERIHemEE Held-to-maturity financial assets - 08,098
—FNEIERE Current portion - 25,540
FE—FANE|EIZE Non-current portion - 72,558
- 98,098

RZZE-N\F  FRPFARIPeREENEHER/NT N \AZAENT T - WEREHEK AR EBETIER - HEE2H
S RLE E IS BASORE

In 2018, the carrying value of non-current held-to-maturity financial assets was $98,098,000 and stated at the amortised cost less
impairment loss. The held-to-maturity financial assets are not past due or impaired.
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14. TREE @ RBEKEX (F)
Financial assets at amortised cost (continued)
(b) EEH A S RIS E

Financial investments at amortised cost

2019 2018

$’000 $'000

NEESH Corporate bonds 143,532 -
—FNEIEEE Current portion 41,532 -
FE—FANIHAEE Non-current portion 102,000 -
143,532 -

FEMBREENAN SRR ENERELA—BUNTZ8R T=8 =Tt - WEREHEKAIRREERBIR - REBEREANSF
AW BB HISRE

The carrying value of non-current financial investments at amortised cost was $143,532,000 and stated at the amortised cost
less impairment loss. The financial investments at amortised cost are not past due or impaired

15. BABGRIMAFEERHLNREEREE
Designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2019 2018
$’000 $°000

JELEMIRE - HATE Unlisted investments, at fair value
BAEEES Unit trusts 665,148 793,921
EFWmEE Fixed income funds 752,291 497,457
&% Bonds 148,170 187,046
REmigE 273 Deposits at financial institutions 10,016 30,002
ERE - mAFE Listed equity securities, at fair value 537 622
gz &N EERR Maximum exposure to credit risk 1,576,162 1,509,048

ERORAFEESREEEIETSNEREMET -

The fair value of all securities is based on their current bid prices in an active market.

BRERXRMATEERE AR TEREEZ ATEEZED - FSIREWABLRT ARARRA
Changes in fair value of designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, interest and investment income are
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

BRERARMATEEZ AR TERMEENTIIEEE :

The designated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018

$’000 $'000

ET United States dollars 1,239,822 1,095,662
BT Hong Kong dollars 336,340 401,644
A Japanese Yen - 8,575
BT Euro dollars - 3,167
1,576,162 1,509,048
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16. REHBEB=MA2RTERRAESRATSEY
Bank deposits with original maturities over three months and cash and
cash equivalents

2019 2018

$'000 $°000

IRITER N FERE Cash at banks and in hand 74,018 63,533

KEERERITIT X Short-term bank deposits 707,857 647,039

e MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 781,875 710,572
REIEAREEA=E A 2877175k Bank deposits with original maturities

over three months 655,390 176,529

1,437,265 887,101

FrdE 2 e R E R Maximum exposure to credit risk 1,437,039 886,902

REER#BA=AA 2 RTFEREReRBSEEYNRABEFEZUEETE -
The carrying values of bank deposits with original maturities over three months and cash and cash equivalents are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

17. FE(TERF ~ FEFTE A K% Accounts payable, accrued expenses and provisions

2019 2018

$'000 $°000

JETRRIR Accounts payable 64,960 57,883
e E Accrued expenses 51,814 55,593
TRIBE Financial liabilities 116,774 113,476
Rt Provisions 32,254 31,227
149,028 144,703

ERARRR - IEETERRBEN A TEEAREEEMEMBFERENGRE - TFELUBHEE -
The fair values of accounts payable, accrued expenses and provisions approximate their carrying values for both financial
years and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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18. IEZL U= Deferred income

RITE—+F Balance as at
mA— B 1st April 2017

FREMR K Amounts received and
FEUGREE ~ receivable during the year ™

Transferred to deferred
HEREERES # capital fund#

TEAMEBPFER Amounts utilised for
& other activities

RZZE—N\F Balance as at
=A=+—Hz#t 31stMarch 2018

RZZE—N\F Balance as at
WA—Bz &8 1st April 2018

FABRK Amounts received and
FEMGREE ~ receivable during the year ™

Transferred to deferred
HEREERES # capital fund#

FEEAMERPER Amounts utilised for
e ox other activities

—NEF Balance as at
ZRA=+—H2Z#% 31stMarch 2019

BT NEE AR
Government #HHE&RE Matched Hthigh

loan, Grantand donations- Other ok ]
secured sponsorship Specific donations Total
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
19,676 28,004 27,238 8,926 83,844
7,600 5,835 91,5692 11,289 116,316
(13) - (14,750) (8,022) (22,785)
(4,885) (20,112) (5,144) (3,240) (33,381)
22,378 13,727 98,936 8,953 143,994
22,378 13,727 98,936 8,953 143,994
43,813 39,381 76,213 35,148 194,555
(4,222) (35,589) (5,700) (3,520) (49,031)
(1,183) (71) (3,288) (32,198) (36,740)
60,786 17,448 166,161 8,383 252,778

~ ”‘EF EREAES SR ECHEACCAERYESEHREFEHAEFEZATET(ZE

RAAREFERELESE] =T AL \EBRTI (=%

FSTEAMJ HEERAZHE BN\ THE T (=%
This includes the donation received and receivable from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust to finance the
Jockey Club Community Healthcare Education Programme of $600,000 (2018: $900,000), the construction of the
OUHK Jockey Club Institute of Healthcare of $31,984,000 (2018: $8,153,000), and fund the Jockey Club STEAM

Education Resources Sharing Scheme of $1,846,000 (2018: Nil).

# ZPERBEIRENE HELRBHEZRELEAES -

—N\F: Nt+E)BE[E
—N\FNE—TEE=Fx) UKRIESZ
—\F :ZT) -

This represents the transfer to deferred capital fund for the purchase or construction of property, plant and equipment.
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19. S £ % Gratuities provision

2019 2018

$’000 $'000

RO A—B 2 &8 Balance as at 1st April 35,639 37,594
BhEeR Provision 35,253 32,086
SAN A Payments (31,176) (34,041)
R=ZA=+—HZ#&#H Balance as at 31st March 39,716 35,639

HER Represented by:

—FRENZEHE Payable within one year 23,782 21,915
—FEEN 2SR Payable after one year 15,934 13,724
39,716 35,639

BHEcE2RERSHMITIERMTE - B EMeBEN QN T EREEREEEMNENBRFENGIESE - EREBIBH
BEMEETAMREREET - AEESSRMST - HALR S BUERM -

Provision was made with reference to the terms stated in employees’ contracts. The fair value of gratuities provision
approximates to its carrying amount for both financial years. No discounting to non-current portion of gratuities provision
is made as the discounting effect is insignificant given low interest rate in the financial market.
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20. BFEEHER - LAFEEETIER Government loans, secured, at fair value

2019 2018
$’000 $'000
BIFEHEHER Government loans, secured,
AR HEESER at fair value 483,315 252,323
B EFRREEERLAT
The government’s loans are repayable as follows:
2019 2018
$’000 $'000
—FN Within one year 31,050 43,049
EE-FA In the second year 67,221 30,299
EE=ZFRFA In the third to fifth years 192,628 107,076
FREFLAE After fifth year 192,416 71,899
483,315 252,323

BEERREEFITTHRREBEAACEERSN  KTEEE RS  EESRNEREFILER [HEARAEE
FeREEESM ] MREHNES (WEKRHE ) - WAZXEHRBHOERER - ZERANKR —AXEE 5 +FF
The government loans are interest-free loans from the HKSAR Government to the Group for the development of the
Campus Phase Il, Jockey Club Campus project and the construction of the OUHK Jockey Club Institute of Healthcare
and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. They are secured by Kwai Hing Learning Centre, and are repayable in equal
annual installments over a period of ten years after the final draw-down of the loan.
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21. JEIEEARE £ Deferred capital fund

IO R—B Z &8k

TR AW SR TER AU *
REEARMES H #
R=ZA=1+—B 2%k

ERRECT AT SESTR(ZF O \F ST oARtHE= ) e

Balance as at 1st April

Released to consolidated statement of

comprehensive income*

Payments for capital expenditure#

Balance as at 31st March

This includes $22,023,000 (2018: $22,542,000) depreciation.

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
410,383 410,140
(22,025) (22,542)
36,740 22,785
425,098 410,383

# ZHRBEERBERZEYR  #SEREFHEEREBAN =T Bt TOET (T /\F . T -atT/\8

AFT) °

This represents the transfer from deferred income of $36,740,000 (2018: $22,785,000) for the purchase or construction
of property, plant and equipment.

22, JEFEFIE A & Deferred tax liability

ERLHIARE
(BB —EARAS)

EIETHIARERIE T ARIED

Deferred tax liability

(To be recovered after more than 12 months)

2 IRBRBFTES - FREFHIMT

2019 2018
$’000 $'000
3,570 1,680

The deferred tax liability arises from the undistributed retained eamings of a subsidiary and its movement during the

year is as follows:

RIOA— B2 &8

AR B USRI
R=A=1t—R2Z#&&H

2018-2019 M ¥ # & FINANCIAL REPORT

Balance as at 1st April

Charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

Balance as at 31st March

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
1,680 1,345
1,890 335
3,570 1,680
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23. {& A4~ Employment expenditure

23.1 BHESHZERAEENT :

Employment expenditure analysis by nature is as follows:

2019 2018
$’000 $'000
e TERERM Salaries, wages and allowances 665,125 636,696
RIRETEIP 2B MK Employer’s contribution to retirement schemes 29,764 29,790
S B i B Provision for gratuities 35,253 32,086
730,142 698,572
232 BHARZHHM
Remuneration of higher paid staff
BHABZEHMNDRIRRATEHER
Their remuneration fell within the following bands:
2019 2018
A® N
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
HK$1,800,001 — HK$1,950,000 4 17
HK$1,950,001 — HK$2,100,000 8 2
HK$2,100,001 — HK$2,250,000 3 2
HK$2,250,001 — HK$2,400,000 3 1
HK$2,400,001 — HK$2,550,000 1 1
HK$2,550,001 — HK$2,700,000 1 4
HK$2,700,001 — HK$2,850,000 3 1
HK$2,850,001 — HK$3,000,000 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,150,000 - 1
HK$3,300,001 — HK$3,450,000 1 -
HK$3,450,001 — HK$3,600,000 - 1
HK$3,750,001 — HK$3,900,000 1 -
HK$5,400,001 — HK$5,550,000 - 1
HK$5,550,001 — HK$5,700,000 1 -
27 32

FMeRHe  BERRKGEVEL ZHR - B2 R -

Remuneration includes salaries, employer’s contributions to retirement schemes, cash allowances and gratuity payments.
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24. —#RBIX General expenses

BBEX
B
Ew iR B AR

TR
EFER
RLTAEER
BsE
PR E B A AR
i /NE
KB BERE
BEHE
8715 o I 22
EAESE  EE
NIEEE
EZERERER
EEMEEAEER
BEEHH
&M
Hin @

25. B KBS E BN EMSES Other activities funded by donations and grants

WA

BRER

- BT R

SNRIBIR

BT BB &

—MRECHHER

HEWE - #az K
HiBHER

k-2
FEER
FrERIZERAMIEAR
RENE IR
Ht

BRRFHEN B
B EEIRE
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Academic expenditure
Academic expenses
Temporary staff costs

Administrative expenditure

Building management

Operating lease expenses

Amortisation expenses

Temporary staff costs

Office expenses

Utilities

Publicity

Stores and equipment

Student admission, graduation
and activities expenses

Library books and materials

Legal and professional fees

Project expenses

Recruitment expenses

Other operating expenses

Income

Donation released from

- Deferred capital fund

- Deferred income

Donations and benefactions

Matching grant

Matched donations - General

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Expenditure
Depreciation charge
Course development and projects
Scholarships and bursaries
Others

Results of other activities funded
by donations and grants

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
7,273 5,227
1,708 1,650
8,981 6,877

33,509 32,514
596 742
196 191

2,839 2,665

22,292 21,457

18,187 18,140

19,230 17,135

2,089 2,021
18,687 16,328
22,292 21,158
1,597 2,621

10,062 12,089

876 1,602
8,233 2,175

160,685 150,838
2019 2018

$’000 $'000

22,025 22,542

49,031 33,381

1,204 13,062
34,760 50,740
2,825 10
(16) (12)

109,829 119,723

(30,595) (32,046)

(19,959) (20,537)

(23,487) (22,723)

(16,822) (12,678)

(90,863) (87,984)

18,966 31,739
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26. Fi¥#Bh€ K E¥ B Matching grants and matched donations

RINBXAESEDHEREZLENGE N  URBBHEZRABHERREHE  BEFITRREBENN -SZE=FA
UEREHBEE c B TTN\F—A—HE  RABEXMABBRIMTRRBFOE S/ 28l -

The HKSAR Government established Matching Grant Scheme in June 2003 to help enhance the fundraising capacities of the UGC-
funded institutions and develop a stronger philanthropic culture in the community towards investment in education. Since 1st January
2008, the University has been included in the beneficiary list of the HKSAR Government’s Matching Grant Scheme.

2

RENENH - FOH - FRAREC RS HB SRR - B 2Rl e RER LT
Details of the University's matched donations, matching grants awarded and the related expenditure of 4th, 5th, 6th and 7th Matching
Grant Scheme are as follows:

BB & —REHER REEHER

Matching Matched Matched
grants donations donations
- General -Specific
$°000 $'000 $'000
RZZE—tFMNA—RAZE&ER Balance as at 1st April 2017 24,308 4116 23,177
g Income
B/ wmEhe Donations/Grants 50,740 10 89,794
MERIEE W Interest and investment income 628 49 1512
51,368 59 91,306
F% Expenditure
N EE]= Capital projects - - (14,752)
B K IIE Scholarships and prizes (240) - (1,585)
0hEE Bursaries - - (1,117
SR Academic development (1,400) (16) (597)
Bt Others (135) (18) (726)
(1,775) (34) (18,777)
RZZ—N\F=ZA=+—B2Z## Balance as at 31st March 2018 73,901 4,141 95,706
RZZE—N\FHEA—B 2% Balance as at 1st April 2018 73,901 4141 95,706
g Income
B/ Donations/Grants 34,760 2,825 73,271
FIB R E W= Interest and investment income 2,053 96 2,939
36,813 2,921 76,210
s Expenditure
BARMHIEE Capital projects - - (3,844)
1EEAS [t 4815 Scholarships and prizes (40) - (2,246)
BEe Bursaries - - (1,025)
BT RE Academic development (627) - (265)
EAh Others (490) - (1,056)
REHERAZ AT Refund of unspent donation to donor - - (40)
(1,157) - (8,476)
RZZE—NF=A=+—HZ&# Balance as at 31st March 2019 109,557 7,062 163,440
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27. BB REBRAETIREHBEREHER
Matching grants and matched donations for Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for
Post-secondary Students

RITEHE RERGY - EE2ENNBREGHIIIHHE S RIBRMBIAFL B INE - (ERLMERE - AEERR
HEpE LMEERHRH X HISEX HZF 28T - TYPRAREAERNBH - Rictimbe LA ZWaE MR

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds the grant, matching grants and related donations of Pilot
Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students, have to be separately disclosed. For the purpose of this note, all
expenditure funded by matching grants and related donations are recognized in the year of expenditure incurred. The eligible
donations, the corresponding matching grants and the related income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

BB & —REEHAR

Matching Matched
grants donations
$'000 $'000
RE-T—+FMA—H 2 Balance as at 1st April 2017 7,025 8,091
Was Income
BRI E WS Interest and investment income 78 335
78 335
s Expenditure
RnEBRE Tour package fee (1,179) (720)
1gES 7 HETH Scholarships and prizes - @70)
PES Bursaries - (13)
Hith Others (64) (115)
(1,243) (1,118)
RZZE—\F=A=1+—HzZ&% Balance as at 31st March 2018 5,860 7,308
RZZ—\FMA—H 4% Balance as at 1st April 2018 5,860 7,308
W Income
BRI E W= Interest and investment income 119 129
119 129
F¥ Expenditure
RimEBERZ Tour package fee (774) (60)
128G K #ETH Scholarships and prizes - (358)
e Bursaries - (11
HAh Others (53) (123)
(827) (552)
RZE—NF=A=+—HzZ#&% Balance as at 31st March 2019 5,152 6,885
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28. ELEEBLEBIHIIRAEIR [ —F K] BELEBLEBIIRTE
Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students and Scheme for
Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students

REGEHE BBRIGH - EE2ERIINIRHEIR [—H—K] B FEEFIORERIELBEUIRE © (ERULMTTRR
FEEREDENX IS HZFREGEH - THIRABREER 2 WaE M

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students and
Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students, the funding received and the payments have to be
separately disclosed. For the purpose of this note, all expenditure funded by the subsidies is recognized in the year of expenditure
incurred. The related income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

[—&H— &L
E WL B BIMEREE
ZiketE Subsidy on Exchange
Subsidy on to “Belt and Road”
Exchange for Post- Regions for Post-
secondary Students secondary Students
$'000 $'000
RZE—+FUA—H &% Balance as at 1st April 2017 5,795 5,605
Weas Income
‘e Subsidy received 920 1,420
S Interest income 40 41
960 1,461
sz Expenditure
BELEHE Subsidy to students (543) (320)
Refund of unspent funding
REIBAT 2 #8580 to HKSAR Government (5,509) (5,372)
(6,052) (5,692
R-E—\FE=ZRA=1+—Hz&#% Balance as at 31st March 2018 703 1,374
RZZ—\FHEA—Hz&# Balance as at 1st April 2018 703 1,374
Wea Income
Ee Subsidy received 1913 1,380
S Interest income 2 3
1,915 1,383
sz Expenditure
ZLEEHE Subsidy to students (301) (141)
Refund of unspent funding
ARBIET Z 850 to HKSAR Government (403) (1,277)
(704) (1,418)
—NE=ZR=+—HZ&H Balance as at 31st March 2019 1,914 1,339
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29.

30.

FRE REZREWE Net interest and investment income

2019 2018

$’000 $'000

RERITFRZF B ES Interest income from bank deposits 16,456 6,847
AEBEERREATEEBED Fair value gains and investment income
CREEZ ANFERNR on financial assets at fair value through

WE W FEE profit or loss 40,333 143,392

56,789 150,239

Fr8%iBI X Income tax expense

MR ARBERBETHR0I5 88 RESHK#H R - M PBAKRAFE 2 WAKRBBINEE M AEFRAEH (ZT—+/—/\F:
Zn) - ARERHPEAKIGHREFEREBEMNEN - AR AKES BATE  ERBAFEMAFERREN - KAFHE
R (P ) 2 IRITHEAE - RS RSRMGREPISBFS T

No Hong Kong profits tax is provided for the University and OU-China as the University is exempted from taxation pursuant to Section
88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance and OU-China is not subject to the profits tax as it derives the income from offshore activities for
the year (2017/18: Nil). Taxation on profits generated by OU-Shenzhen has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for
the year at the rate of taxation prevailing in the PRC in which it operates. The amount of income tax expense charged to the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income represents:

2019 2018
$’000 $°000

B HATIE Current taxation
BEBMEM Hong Kong profits tax - -
FR B (b S FTIS R PRC enterprise income tax 3,430 3,215
3,430 3,215
RIERIA Deferred taxation 846 335
4,276 3,550
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LABTT4EE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

30. Fi8%iBIYX (#) Income tax expense (continued)

SEPRBRI &R BIE - EERARERM MERGHAERSEEROT
The taxation on the Group's surplus before income tax differ from the theoretical amounts that would arise using the taxation rate of the

home country of the University as follows:

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
FrR AT 2R Surplus before income tax 337,313 311,672
WARERMZ 16.5% Notional tax calculated at the
(ZZF—N\F :16.5%) rate of the home country of
MEAESHBAETR the University at 16.5% (2018:16.5%) 55,657 51,426
HERBTEEDIZE 88 & Tax effect on surplus of the University
BERBHe s KRERRZ which is exempted from taxation pursuant
MG E to Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (53,466) (49,663)
AAHF 2 HFBEARZER Expenses incurred in OU-China not tax deductible 3 3
FREEE () KA Effect of different taxation rate in the PRC in which
TR RN TLE a subsidiary carries out business operations 1,165 899
BRSBTS Provision of dividend withholding tax - 564
FRAEDIRIRE &R Temporary difference on undistributed retained
ZERTE earnings from a subsidiary 846 335
HAth Others 71 (14)
SR Income tax expense 4,276 3,550
074 075
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LUBTT4EE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

31.

31.1

31.2

31.3

32.

7 {+FRIE Commitments

BEREAMRIE Campus development commitments

HE_Z-NF=ZA=+—0 SEHEFTERE BBELARAEETSREREE SN KB REER 20 ANKIE
UM

As at 31st March 2019, the Group had commitments for the development of the Jockey Club Campus, the OUHK Jockey
Club Institute of Healthcare and related facilities as follows:

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
EES A ERERE Contracted but not provided for 559,326 112,205

EEHE AR Operating lease commitments

HE_Z-NF=A=+—0  SEETAIHENLCLHENRARKER S HERENT -
As at 31st March 2019, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
as follows:

2019 2018

$’000 $°000

A —F No later than one year 7,218 6,213
BBE—FETBERT Later than one year and no later than five years 8,531 2,668
15,749 8,881

H A& 1 FRIE Other commitment

RIBRBEREBEFRITRIEBITEKB B RR - RABLIEHE - ABREFER L A] fER BT D o
Under the terms in the agreement with the HKSAR Government, the leasehold land on which the University’s campus is
erected may be repossessed should the University terminate as an educational institution.

i 30 & FE W FH € 78 Operating lease rental receivable

BE_ZT-NF=A=1t—H0 SEETTHENCLEHE THRRKEESWALBENT :
As at 31st March 2019, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable operating leases
as follows:

2019 2018

$°000 $°000

THEE—F No later than one year 3,966 12,598
BA—FETEBBRF Later than one year and no later than five years 1,204 3,239
5,170 15,837
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33.

33.2

HE&REE X Cash flow information

33.1 ¥¥FHMISZB & Cash generated from operations

2019 2018
$°000 $°000
BREZRT & B Surplus before income tax 337,313 311,672
FEE Adjustments for:
FERZE W Interest and investment income (56,789) (150,239)
FEW B EER 2 RIE Provision for / (reversal of) impairment of
e (R student loan receivables 15 (90)
FEYER A BRI R Written off of student loan receivable 15 90
RIEHM ET 2 RERS Provision for / (reversal of) impairment of
AR/ (M) stock of course materials 34 (15)
HEME - B R Loss on disposal of property,
mER plant and equipment 20 12
3 PR AR 85 Amortisation of land use right 196 191
EREERE Amortisation of intangible asset 6,235 6,077
nEEA Depreciation charge 91,178 93,616
LIEE S E R 2 BER Surplus before changes in working capital 378,217 261,314
RIZM ETF 2 38N Increase in stock of course materials (128) (23)
FEURERR ~ HAbFEULEREX - Increase in accounts receivable, other
TENFRIBERIES 2N receivables, prepayments and deposits (24,799) (18,167)
BRI 2 SN Increase in fee income receipt in advance 34,609 60,471
FHEBBBARERZ Increase in various donations income
SHRER 2 1E N receipts and utilisation, net 81,916 54,924
FERTERFR - BRI ERA K Increase in accounts payable, accrued
R 2 1N expenses and provisions 7,639 13,358
ESVAEEIIE S dl ke n Cash generated from operations 477,454 371,877
3k B Rt ¥ 5 Bz & R ¥ AR & Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
B A EIFEZ Government loans, secured
2019 2018
$’000 $'000
RUA—HZ &% Balance as at 1st April 252,323 226,225
UWERER T 2 B B3R Interest-free loan received from Government 313,100 72,500
FEMLHEERERE Interest element transferred to deferred income (43,813) (7,600)
IREF S Interest for the year 5,405 4,898
EERBNREER Interest-free loan repaid to Government (43,700) (43,700)
R=ZA=+—H2&#% Balance as at 31st March 483,315 252,323
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34. B 5 X5 Related party transactions

34.1 BF2ATFRIE S Transactions with subsidiaries

FR - ARBERINDARFEAKETTATEARS -
During the year, the following significant transactions with OU-Shenzhen and OU-China were undertaken by the University:

2019 2018
$°000 $'000
FEUFARIFIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 3,416 12,316

W FARIFIAREEBAR - |IEH - ER - ATRERKEREL BB HENTIE - BIRFRRFIEAREBHSIER
BRREACE -

Amounts due from subsidiaries are related to business operations, unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand and
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. There is no past due or default payment history to amounts due from subsidiaries.

34.2 TEEHE AENF £ Key management personnel compensation

SENEEBTREABRIEEAE - HERERIEENSIREH FAEBENEEINSEEREAS - EMeT
The key management of the Group refers to those senior management having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group and their compensations are analysed as follows:

2019 2018

$’000 $'000

e MoERE Salaries and allowances 46,936 47,603
B EERIRGTEIN K Employer’s contribution to retirement schemes 534 566
BB ENS RS Provision for gratuities 4,310 3,453
51,780 51,622

2018-2019 ###8 & FINANCIAL REPORT



e MR R AR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LABTT4EE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

35. REBEEERERNRESHERBHR

Balance sheet and statement of changes in fund balances of the University

35.1 KB EEHA A% Balance sheet of the University

ERENEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
WEMHE Investment properties
M - HEERKRER Property, plant and equipment
mvEE Intangible assets
FRANIRE Investments in subsidiaries
JEUELE B Student loan receivables
REZRIHemEE Held-to-maturity financial assets
REER AR & BN & Financial investments at amortised cost
mEEE CURRENT ASSETS
SRR ETF Stock of course materials
JEUF R EIFRIR Amounts due from subsidiaries

FEU RN « ELABFEMRARK

Accounts receivable, other receivables,

FENFIERES prepayments and deposits
FEMEAE Student loan receivables
mEBERREATEE Designated financial assets at

B EemEE fair value through profit or loss
HERIHemERE Held-to-maturity financial assets
WEE A S BN & Financial investments at amortised cost
MESRERE Derivative financial assets

FESEBB=EA Y
BITER

Bank deposits with original maturities
over three months

ReRReEEY Cash and cash equivalents
mBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
TEYCEEI B Fee income receipt in advance

FENBRTR - IERT &R
it

Accounts payable, accrued expenses
and provisions

R Deferred income

HHE M BEREIE S Current portion of gratuities provision

B ERERERRBIE D Current portion of Government loans, secured
nEEERHE NET CURRENT ASSETS
BEER TOTAL ASSETS LESS

Bt IR CURRENT LIABILITIES

R-B—hE RZZE—N\F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
At 31st March 2019 At 31st March 2018
$’000 $" 000
140,275 143,445
1,434,149 1,387,817
3,486 9,721
9,000 -
24,939 20,110

- 72,558

102,000 -
1,713,849 1,633,651
2,382 2,286
3,416 12,316
116,781 89,874
6,470 5,652
1,576,162 1,509,048
- 25,540

41,532 -
90 -
648,718 172,360
744,355 684,324
3,139,906 2,501,300
306,425 274,921
147,455 142,760
252,778 143,994
23,782 21,915
31,050 43,049
761,490 626,639
2,378,416 1,874,661
4,092,265 3,508,312
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35. REBEERBERRESHEHREEHR (H)

Balance sheet and statement of changes in fund balances of the University (continued)

35.1 XBEERAMB/EK () Balance sheet of the University (continued)

ERBAEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
2 B e R Gratuities provision
A ERER Government loans, secured
BEERES Deferred capital fund

BEEEE TOTAL NET ASSETS

HER REPRESENTED BY
BELHERES FUNDS AND RESERVES

R =B—NF R=B—\fF

=A=+—-H =A=t+—AH

BfifsE At 31st March 2019 At 31st March 2018
Note $’000 $'000
15,934 13,724

452,265 209,274

425,098 410,383

893,297 633,381

3,198,968 2,874,931

352 3,198,968 2,874,931

REGR-_ZT-—NFLA=+T—BRAEREEAER
Approved by the Council on 31st July 2019

FERiE Peter KT Wan EEILY S Wong
T Treasurer K& President
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35. REBEEERERNRESHEREHX (H)

Balance sheet and statement of changes in fund balances of the University (continued)

35.2 XBELFEIFE T =X Statement of changes in fund balances of the University

R-ZT—EFMA—RZ&EH
FREH

EeZEMHE
RZZ-NF=ZRA=+—HZ#&%%

RZZT-NFMOA—R &
FA (BE ) Bk
Ee 2 EMHE
RIZE-NF=ZA=+—Hz#&EH

Balance as at 1st April 2017
Surplus for the year
Reallocation of funds

Balance as at 31st March 2018

Balance as at 1st April 2018
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year
Reallocation of funds

Balance as at 31st March 2019

SHES — MR iR ot ]
Specific funds General reserve Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
305,716 2,263,168 2,568,884
3,404 302,643 306,047

3 (3) -
309,123 2,565,808 2,874,931
309,123 2,565,808 2,874,931
(1,889) 325,926 324,037
2,058 (2,058) -
309,292 2,889,676 3,198,968
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

1. EBAKFHEF Student Statistics

iy FHBEAR (i) Average student headcount
-B5RIE - Credit Bearing Programmes
- EIERIE - Distance Learning Programmes
(&R R A FHERE) (DL & e-Learning Programmes)
- mERE - Face-to-face Programmes
- MEBEDRIE - Non-Credit Bearing Programmes

(i) BEFMESEH
(GEBRME - HERRE)

(i) Total student credits
(DL & e-Learning Programmes)

(i) FRBEFIFMES
(EB M EHERE)

(iii) Average credit per student
(DL & e-Learning Programmes)

2. E% Tuition Fee

() &2k (&) (i) By school ($ million)

- At g R - School of A&SS

- FIREHEEEER - Lee Shau Kee School of B&A
- BHE S - School of S&T

- IR MRS - School of N&HS

- BB REXER - School of E&L

- FPRANEFECRR - LIPACE

- BHEE - Total Tuition Fee

(i) AR (B&T) (i) By category ($ million)

- BORE - Credit Bearing Programmes
- EIBERIE - Distance Learning Programmes
- EERE - Face-to-face Programmes
- MEBSRIE - Non-Credit Bearing Programmes
- BEEH - Total Tuition Fee

(i) FREBEFHEBE (JT) (i) Average fee per student ($)

- BORE - Credit Bearing Programmes
& IR R - Distance Learning Programmes
- EERE - Face-to-face Programmes
(AzaHEL (Undergraduate Full-time
RIEBR 4 RAE) Equivalent only)

- MEEDRIE

(v 380 FH8% (r)
5\% u%%i

2018-2019 ###8 & FINANCIAL REPORT

- Non-Credit Bearing Programmes

(iv) Average fee per credit ($)
- Distance Learning Programmes

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 Vs
2017/18

%

9,444 8,747 8,490 -2.9%
10,294 10,315 10,785 4.6%
30,963 28,059 37,261 32.8%
190,203 190,727 179,422 -5.9%
20.1 21.8 21.1 -3.1%
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 Vs
2017/18

%

226.6 227.7 263.3 15.6%
258.2 262.3 329.6 25.6%
132.8 123.3 1411 14.4%
157.5 180.8 218.5 20.9%
94.7 100.5 108.9 8.4%
126.7 117.5 1241 5.6%
996.5 1,012.1 1,185.5 171%
2121 216.3 210.1 -2.8%
656.5 676.7 848.6 25.4%
127.9 119.1 126.8 6.5%
996.5 1,012.1 1,185.5 17.1%
22,460 24,722 24,748 0.1%
64,721 66,391 79,334 19.5%
4,130 4,244 3,403 -19.8%
1,115 1,134 1,171 3.3%




RIEER
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

LABTTAESE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

2. 2% (48) Tuition Fee (continued)

FHE4 725 (JU) Tuition Fee Per Student (3)
90,000
80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000 —
10,000 —
0 L | | |
2016/17 Pl at:] 2018/19
& B FR1Z Distance Learning Programmes 22,460 24,722 24,748
B AERRE (U2 EHBREE2E %) 64,721 66,391 79,334
Face-to-face Programmes (Undergraduate Full-time
Equivalent only)
B TMEE5RE Non-Credit Bearing Programmes 4,130 4,244 3,403

082 083
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LABTLAEE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

3. B3 Expenditure
2016/17  2017/18  2018/19 2018/19 Vs

2017/18
%
() BEREHRIESZE (i) Operating cost for full-time
2 BB (JT) equivalent student for
credit bearing programmes ($)
- BEKAR - Direct Cost 26,876 27,772 28,983 4.4%
- fAHERAR - Indirect Cost 28,923 28,992 29,738 2.6%
- KRR - Total Cost 55,799 56,764 58,721 3.4%
(i) EMEEIRIE (BEIT) (i) Result for Other Activities ($ million) (17.6) 31.7 19.0 -40.1%
(i) FHEIBRIAZ (iii) Average course population
- EERE - Distance Learning Programmes 55.9 53.8 54.1 0.5%
- EERE - Face-to-face Programmes 127.5 119.9 113.6 -5.3%
(iv) EERAHEBENEDE (v) % of operating costs to tuition fee
- BHRE - Credit Bearing Programmes 90.4% 90.0% 79.1% -12.1%
- MEEHRE - Non-Credit Bearing Programmes 91.2% 92.6% 90.6% 21%
- BANE - Total 90.5% 90.3% 80.3% -11.1%

4. B KA Staff Cost
2016/17  2017/18  2018/19 2018/19 Vs

2017/18
%
() ZEBHHWEAR (i) No of full-time staff
(TErEIEERE) (exclude project staff) 910.5 903.6 920.8 1.9%
(iy FMeE(5ET) (i) Total Payroll ($ million)
HiEANB Academic Staff
- B - Tutor 46.9 456 435 -4.6%
- BRIET - Course Co-ordinators 271.8 285.5 300.8 5.4%
318.7 331.1 3443 4.0%
Be = & BB P % B Dean & School staff 711 70.9 76.4 7.8%
THAE Admin Staff 268.7 263.8 273.0 3.5%
i =| Temporary Staff 26.9 313 34.8 11.3%
42 Total 685.4 697.1 728.5 45%
(i) HEBABKAE LR (iii) % of academic staff costs to
HBEN AT D E total staff costs 46.5% 47.5% 47.3% -0.5%
(iv) 2508 B A 485 (iv) % of staff costs to total expenditure
EOEpaRES 69.2% 69.2% 69.1% -0.2%
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LABTTAESE  Expressed in Hong Kong dollars

5. Hf Others

SEAFEFANERKERRFI KRR (BET)
Group's Net Result Before Interest and
Investment Income for the Year ($ million)

300.0

/O 42805
250.0

200.0

<1614
150.0

100.0 41031

50.0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
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5. H4th () Others (continued)
SEFEEERR (BSET)
Group's Operating Result for the Year ($ million)

300.0

‘ ) 4261.6
250.0

200.0
150.0
129.7
120.7p C)/C)/4
100.0
50.0

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
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5. H4th () Others (continued)

HBBEITHAEE DI

Expenditure Allocation Between Academic and Administration

100% —

90% —

80% —

70% —

60% —

50% —

40% —

30% —

20% —

10% —

0% —

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

[ 1TEFS Administrative Expenses 40.6% 40.2% 39.8%
B HFER Y Academic Expenses 59.4% 50.8% 60.2%
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5. H4h (&) Others (continued)

FHE4E 27X (7)) Expenditure Per Student ($)

70,000

60,000

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

55542 Credit Bearing Programmes

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

A Indirect Cost

28,923 28,992 29,738

B B Direct Cost

26,876 27,772 28,983
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